PENNSYLVANIA LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

PLAN OF OPERATION

C:\Documents and Settings\joe-1\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK184\PLHIGA PLAN OF OPERATION 2006.doc

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1.	Plan of Operation1
Article 2.	Annual Meetings of the Member Insurers2
Article 3.	The Board of Directors2
Article 4.	Operations7
Article 5.	Records and Reports8
Article 6.	Membership9
Article 7.	Appeals9
Article 8.	Indemnification10
Article 9.	Officers
Article 10.	Transition Provisions
Article 11.	Conformity to Statute

PENNSYLVANIA LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

PLAN OF OPERATION

(As Adopted <u>10-5-06</u>) (Submitted to the Insurance Commissioner <u>10-6-06</u>) (Effective <u>10-30-06</u>)

Preface

Act 178 (the "Act"), which was enacted on December 18, 1992, effected certain amendments to The Insurance Company Law of 1921. Section 19 of the Act added an Article XVII (Article "XVII") to The Insurance Company Law of 1921 and created The Pennsylvania Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (the "Association") effective December 18, 1992.

Article 1. Plan of Operation.

- A. This Plan of Operation (the "Plan") shall become effective upon written approval of the Plan by the Insurance Commissioner of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (hereinafter the "Commissioner") as provided in Section 1708 of Article XVII or 30 days after submission of this Plan to the Commissioner if the Commissioner has not theretofore disapproved this Plan.
- B. Amendments to this Plan, as necessary or suitable to assure the fair, reasonable and equitable administration of the Association, shall be adopted by the Association's Board of Directors (the "Board") and submitted to the Commissioner for approval. Any such amendment so submitted shall be effective upon written approval of the Commissioner or 30 days after submission of such amendment to the Commissioner if the Commissioner has not theretofore disapproved such amendment.
- C. A copy of this Plan shall be available for inspection by any member insurer at the office of the Association during normal business hours, and a copy shall be provided to any member insurer upon request.

Article 2. Annual Meetings of the Member Insurers.

- A. An annual meeting of the member insurers of the Association shall be held for the election of directors at the office of the Association in June, immediately preceding the annual meeting of the Board, unless the Chairman of the Board, upon proper notice, shall designate some other time, day or place.
- B. Member insurers shall be notified of the time, day and place of the annual meeting of the member insurers at least 30 days prior to such annual meeting.
- C. At all annual meetings of the member insurers:
 - 1. Proxy voting shall be permitted, except that the presence of not fewer than five member insurers shall be required to constitute a quorum.
 - 2. The member insurers receiving the greatest number of votes shall be elected.
 - 3. Each member insurer shall be entitled to one vote in person or by proxy for each member of the Board to be elected. Cumulative voting shall not be allowed in any such election.

Article 3. Board of Directors.

- A. There shall be a Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 1705 of Article XVII. The Board shall consist of three classes of three Directors each.
 - 1. The members of the class of the Board whose term of office shall expire in each year shall be elected for terms of three years so that the terms of all Directors shall not expire in the same year and the terms of no two classes of Directors shall expire in the same year.
 - a. The Board shall be elected by the member insurers as provided in Article 2 hereof, and shall fairly represent member insurers. No two members of the Board shall be from the same or affiliated insurers.
 - b. Each member of the Board shall designate its representative and any alternate from the same member insurer.
 - c. The previously elected Board members shall serve until their successors have been duly elected and qualified to serve.
 - 2. Upon the nomination of member insurers for election to the Board, the Association shall notify the Commissioner in writing and request approval of the members of the Board who have been nominated for election. Any such nominations submitted in writing to the Commissioner shall be effective upon written approval of the Commissioner or 30 days after submission of the

nominations to the Commissioner for approval unless the Commissioner has theretofore disapproved such nominations as not being fairly representative of the member insurers. In the event the Commissioner shall determine that all member insurers are not fairly represented by reason of such nominations, the Commissioner shall disapprove the nomination of the Board members and order another nomination.

- 3. The Board:
 - a. Shall elect a Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer from among its members, and such other officers as it deems necessary. The posts of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same member. Each officer shall serve a term of one year or until a successor is elected.
 - b. Shall have its Chairman, with the advice and consent of the Board, appoint an Executive Committee from among its members for the purpose of facilitating the operations of the Association. Such Committee shall have as its members the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer, and such other Directors, if any, as appointed by the Board. The Executive Committee shall have, to the extent permitted by law, all the powers and authority of the Board, provided it shall not have the authority to act on matters requiring a majority vote of the full Board as provided in Article 3.B.3 below.
 - c. Shall have its Chairman, with the advice and consent of the Board, appoint from among its members, a Nominating Committee. Such committee shall select a nominee to succeed each Board member whose term expires at the annual meeting of the member insurers. Other nominees may be submitted in writing to the Board upon the petition of ten member insurers made not later than the first day of March preceding the annual meeting at which such nominees are to be elected. The Board shall submit all such nominations to the Commissioner in writing not later than 60 days prior to the annual meeting at which such nominees are candidates for election and, upon the Commissioner's approval, shall make the names of said nominees known to the member insurers at least 30 days prior to the annual meeting of the member insurers.
 - d. May have its Chairman, with the advice and consent of the Board, appoint from among its members, such other committees as the Chairman may deem necessary or appropriate to serve at the pleasure of the Board, each of which shall have such powers as may be delegated by the Board, provided it shall not have the authority to act on matters requiring a majority vote of the full Board as provided in Article 3.B.3 below.
- 4. Vacancies occurring on the Board between annual meetings of the member insurers shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining members of the Board for the remainder of the unexpired term. Any director so appointed shall be

submitted to the Commissioner in writing for approval and such appointment shall be effective upon written approval of the Commissioner or 30 days after submission of the appointment to the Commissioner in writing for approval unless the Commissioner has theretofore disapproved such appointment as not being fairly representative of the member insurers. Vacancies occurring in elective offices between the annual meetings shall be filled by majority vote of the Board. Such appointees shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired terms to which appointed.

- B. 1. At any meeting of the Board, each member of the Board shall have one vote.
 - 2. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the acts of the majority of the Board members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board, except as provided in paragraph 3 hereof.
 - 3. An affirmative vote of a majority of the full Board is required to:
 - a. approve a contract with a servicing facility for overall administration of the Association, except that administrations of specific functions with regard to specific insolvencies shall not require an affirmative vote of a majority of the full Board;
 - b. levy an assessment or provide for a refund;
 - c. borrow money or establish or change a line of credit;
 - d. approve reinsurance contracts, assumption agreements or guarantee plans; or
 - e. adopt amendments to the Plan.
- C. An annual meeting of the Board shall be held immediately following the annual meeting of the member insurers, unless the Chairman, upon proper notice, shall designate some other time, day or place. At each annual meeting, the Board shall:
 - 1. Review the Plan and adopt proposed amendments pursuant to Section 1708 of Article XVII.
 - 2. Review each outstanding contract or agreement, if any, and make necessary or desirable corrections, improvements or additions.
 - 3. Review operating expenses and outstanding contractual obligations and determine whether an assessment, or a refund of a prior assessment, is necessary for the proper administration of the Association and, if so, the amount of either. In order to avoid disproportionate clerical expense, the Board may establish an amount below which assessments or refunds shall not be made.

- 4. Review, consider and act on any other matters deemed by it to be necess ary and proper for the administration of the Association.
- D. The Board may hold other regular or special meetings at such times and with such frequency as it deems appropriate to conduct the business of the Association. Any Board member not present may consent in writing to any specific action taken by the Board, but this shall not permit Board members to act through other Board members by proxy. Any action approved by the required number of Board members at such meeting, including those consenting in writing, shall be as valid a Board's action as though authorized at an annual or regular meeting of the Board held in person.
- E. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairman and shall be called upon the request of any two Board members. At such special meeting, the Board may consider and decide any matter deemed necessary for the proper administration of the Association. Not less than 48 hours notice shall be given to each Board member of the time, place and purpose of any such special meeting.
- F. At meetings at which the impairment or insolvency of a member insurer is considered, the Board shall:
 - 1. Consider and determine the legal obligations of the Association with regard to any reported impairment or insolvency.
 - 2. Consider and decide what methods or facilities, as permitted under Section 1706 of Article XVII, shall be adopted or utilized to assure fulfillment of the covered obligations of the impaired or insolvent member insurer for each of the categories of covered policies.
 - 3. Assure that timely action is taken to gain access to and effect proper retention of records of the impaired or insolvent member insurer which are deemed necessary to the prompt and economical handling of its legally imposed duties.
 - 4. Consider and decide to what extent and in what manner the Board shall exercise the powers authorized by Section 1706 of Article XVII to bring legal actions or provide for the defense thereof in order to avoid payment of improper claims.
 - 5. Consider and decide or defer the decision as to what assessment, if any, should be levied, and consider and decide whether any assessment shall be deferred or abated. If such assessment, deferral or abatement shall be determined to be appropriate, such action or actions shall be in accordance with the requirements specified in the appropriate item or items of Section 1707 of Article XVII. Notices of assessments to member insurers shall be in sufficient detail as to form a basis for the payment of such assessment by the member insurer. The Board

shall promptly inform the Commissioner of the failure of any member to pay an assessment made pursuant to this paragraph when due.

- 6. Take all steps permitted by law, and deemed necessary, to protect the Association's rights as pertaining to the impaired or insolvent member insurer and its policyholders. In addition to the foregoing powers, the Board shall have and exercise such other powers as may be reasonably necessary to implement its powers and responsibilities under Article XVII.
- 7. Issue to each member insurer a certificate of contribution for each class of assessment paid for which certificates are to be provided under Section 1707 of Article XVII. The certificate shall show the amount paid by each such insurer, the date of the assessment, name of the particular insolvent or impaired insurer for which the assessment was made, the value, if any, of such certificate as determined by the Commissioner, and such other information as the Board shall find relevant.
- 8. In addition to the foregoing powers, the Board shall have and exercise such other powers as may be reasonably necessary to implement the provisions of Article XVII.
- G. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board or any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board or the committee consent in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing the action, and such resolution and the written consent thereto by the members of the Board or the committee shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or committee.
- H. Any one or more members of the Board or any committee thereof may participate in a meeting of such Board or committee by means of a conference telephone or similar communication equipment allowing all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.
- I. Members of the Board may be reimbursed from the assets of the Association for reasonable expenses incurred by them as members of the Board upon approval of such expenses by the Treasurer or other authorized officer of the Association, but members of the Board shall not be compensated by the Association for their services as members of the Board. The Treasurer or such other officer may not approve the reimbursement of his own expenses or of the member insurer with which he is affiliated.

Article 4. Operations.

- A. The official address of the Association shall be the address designated from time to time by the Board.
- The Board and the officers of the Association may employ or retain such persons, Β. firms or corporations to perform such administrative functions as are necessary for the Board's performance of the duties imposed upon the Association. The Board may use the mailing address of such person, firm or corporation as the official address of the Association. Such persons may include an executive director with such authority as may be delegated by the Board to implement and carry out broad directives of the Board made pursuant to its statutory authority and duties. Such persons shall be knowledgeable about insurance matters, conversant with the law as it relates to covered policies of insurance and administratively capable of implementing the Board's directives. Such persons may also include attorneys at law, actuaries, accountants, claims personnel and such other specialists or persons whose advice or assistance is deemed by the Board to be necessary to the discharge of its duties imposed by law. The Board may agree to compensate such persons so as best to serve the interests of the Association and the public. Such persons, firms or corporations shall keep and maintain such records of their activities as may be required by the Board.
- C. The Board may open such bank accounts as it deems necessary for the proper administration of Association business. Reasonable delegation and withdrawal authority to such accounts for Association business will be made consistent with prudent fiscal policy. Check signature limits and wire authority limits and procedures shall be determined by the Treasurer and approved by the Board. Investment policy shall be recommended by the Investment Committee or, in the absence of an Investment Committee, the Treasurer and approved by the Board, and shall be reviewed at the annual meeting of the Board.
- D. In the event in the judgement of the Board the maximum assessment under Section 1707 of Article XVII, in combination with the Association's borrowing authority, will be insufficient over any two years to cover the outstanding and anticipated covered claims against the Association relating to one or more impaired or insolvent member insurers under any account or accounts, the Board may provide that the Association shall make partial and periodic payments on such claims in accordance with a schedule to be adopted by the Board. Such schedule may give preference to health claims, periodic annuity benefit payments, death benefits, supplemental benefits and cash withdrawals under emergency or hardship standards proposed by the Board under Section 1707 of Article XVII. Such schedule may be adjusted from time to time as changes in the volume and type of such covered claims may warrant, and may be structured so as not to give preference to claims in the order in which they were incurred or made or in the order of which member insurers first became impaired or insolvent, or to require retroactive adjustments.

- E. The Board shall determine at least annually if an excess of funds in any account exists such that the funds are not reasonably needed to fund future obligations of current or future insolvencies for the payment of the obligations of the Association. If the Board determines an excess exists, it can in its sole discretion, and in proportion to the contribution of each insurer to that account or upon such formula as the Board may reasonably determine:
 - (1) refund in cash; or,
 - (2) refund in the form of a credit against any future assessments with respect to that account; to the extent a credit is granted to an insurer, it shall be reflected in the next subsequent assessment of the insurer for that account; or,
 - (3) reallocate excess funds to any other impairment or insolvency within the same account, or place the excess funds in a composite account to be held for this purposes.

In order to avoid disproportionate clerical expense, the Board may establish an amount below which refunds shall not be made.

Article 5. Records and Reports.

- A. Minutes of the proceedings of each meeting of the Board, annual meeting of the members and committee meeting shall be written. The original of these minutes shall be retained by the Secretary or by such other person as the Board may designate. Records of such meetings shall be made public only upon the termination of liquidation, rehabilitation or conservation proceedings involving the impaired or insolvent insurer, upon the termination of the impairment or insolvency of the insurer, or upon the order of a court of competent jurisdiction. Nothing in this subsection shall limit the duty of the Association to render a report of its activities under Section C of this Article 5. The Board may, upon majority vote, make reports and recommendations to the Commissioner upon any matter germane to the solvency, liquidation, rehabilitation or conservation of any member insurer or to the solvency of any company seeking to do an insurance business in Pennsylvania. Such reports and recommendations shall not be considered public documents.
- B. Copies of minutes, reports, recommendations, records and documents shall be furnished to each Board member and to the Commissioner and to any member insurer upon request provided, however, that such minutes, reports, recommendations or other records and documents relating to the portions of such proceeding which were closed, because of the confidential nature of the matters addressed, shall also be confidential, and distribution of such minutes, reports, recommendations, records and documents shall be limited to the members of the Board and the Association's attorneys, employees or agents, considered by the Board to be necessary or pertinent to the discussion of the matters addressed or performance of the actions taken during such confidential proceedings.

- C. The Board shall make an annual report as required by Section 1713 of Article XVII not later than May 1 of each year to the Commissioner. Such report shall include a financial report for the preceding calendar year in a form approved by the Commissioner and a review of the activities of the Association during the preceding calendar year. The form of financial report submitted by the Association shall be approved upon written approval of the Commissioner or 30 days after submission of such financial report to the Commissioner unless the Commissioner has theretofore disapproved the form of such financial report.
- D. The Board shall, once each calendar year, engage a certified public accountant to audit the financial affairs of the Association. The outside auditor shall report its findings to the Audit Committee, if one has been appointed; otherwise to the full Board.

Article 6. Membership.

- A. Pursuant to Section 1704 of Article XVII, any insurer which, as of December 18, 1992, was licensed or held a certificate of authority to transact in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania the kinds of insurance covered by Section 1703 of Article XVII shall be members of this Association. Each insurer which is licensed or receives a certificate of authority after said date to transact in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania the kinds of insurance covered by Section 1703 of Article XVII shall be suthority after said date to transact in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania the kinds of insurance covered by Section 1703 of Article XVII shall automatically become, effective on the date on which it receives such a license or certificate of authority, a member insurer of this Association.
- B. An insurer which ceases to be admitted shall automatically cease to be a member effective on the day following the termination or expiration of its license to transact the kinds of insurance covered by Section 1703 of Article XVII. However, such insurer shall remain liable for any assessments based on impairments occurring prior to the termination of its license. Such insurer shall also be entitled to a refund of all or part of any assessments which were made prior to termination of its license which later proves to be excessive.
- C. A member insurer which becomes an impaired or insolvent insurer after its license or certificate of authority in Pennsylvania may have been suspended, revoked, not renewed, or voluntarily withdrawn shall remain a member insurer for purposes of the liability of the Association with respect to the covered policies or contracts of such member insurer.

Article 7. Appeals.

Any member insurer aggrieved by an act of the Board or Association shall appeal to the Board before appealing to the Commissioner. Such appeal shall be taken within 60 days of the date on which such member insurer knew or should have known of such act. If such member insurer is aggrieved by the final action or decision of the Board on the

-9-

appeal, or if the Board declines or fails to act on such appeal within 60 days, the member insurer may appeal to the Commissioner within 60 days after the action or decision of the Board or the expiration of the 60-day period within which the Board failed to act on such appeal. Any member insurer which makes an appeal to the Commissioner pursuant to this Article must provide the Association with notice of the appeal by mailing a copy of the appeal to the Association by certified mail on the same day on which the appeal is submitted to the Commissioner. Failure to take an appeal within the time and in the manner set forth in this Plan shall bar any claim that a member might otherwise have with respect to any act taken by the Association or its Board. If the appeal pertains to a protest of all or part of an assessment, the member shall pay when due the full amount of the available to meet Association obligations during the pendency of the protest or any subsequent appeal. Payment shall be accompanied by a statement in writing that the payment is made under protest and setting forth a brief statement of the grounds for the protest.

Article 8. Indemnification.

- A. 1. The Association shall indemnify any director, former director, officer, former officer, employee, former employee, agent or former agent who was or is a party to, or is threatened to be made a party to, or who is called as a witness in connection with, any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, including an action by or in the right of the Association, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding unless the act or failure to act giving rise to the claim for indemnification is determined by a court to have constituted willful misconduct or recklessness.
 - 2. The indemnification advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article 8 shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled under any agreement, contract, vote of members or directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office. It is the policy of the Association that indemnification of, and advancement of expenses to, directors and officers of the Association shall be made to the fullest extent permitted by law. To this end, the provisions of this Article 8 shall be deemed to have been amended for the benefit of directors, officers, employees and agents of the Association to indemnify or advance expenses to directors, officers, employees or agents of the Association.

3. The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by or granted pursuant to this Article 8 shall, unless otherwise provided when authorized or ratified, continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such person.

4.

As soon as practicable after receipt by any person specified in Section 1 of this Article 8 of notice of the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding specified in Section 1 of this Article 8, such person shall, if a claim with respect thereto may be made against the Association under this Article 8, notify the Association in writing of the commencement or the threat thereof; however, the omission so to notify the Association shall not relieve the Association of any liability under this Article 8 unless the Association shall have been prejudiced thereby or from any other liability which it may have to such person other than under this Article 8. With respect to any such action as to which such person notifies the Association of the commencement or threat thereof, the Association may participate therein at its own expense and, except as otherwise provided herein to the extent that it desires, the Association jointly with any other indemnifying party similarly notified, shall be entitled to assume the defense thereof, with counsel selected by the Association to the reasonable satisfaction of such person. After notice from the Association to such person of its election to assume the defense, the Association shall not be liable to such person under this Article 8 for any legal or other expenses subsequently incurred by such person in connection with the defense thereof otherwise than as provided herein. Such person shall have the right to employ his own counsel in such action, but the fees and expenses of such counsel incurred after notice from the Association of its assumption of the defense thereof shall be at the expense of such person unless: (i) the employment of counsel by such person shall have been authorized by the Association; (ii) such person shall have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of interest between the Association and such person in the conduct of the defense of such proceeding or (iii) the Association shall not in fact have employed counsel to assume the defense of such action. The Association shall not be entitled to assume the defense of any proceeding brought by or on behalf of the Association or as to which such person shall have reasonably concluded that there may be a conflict of interest. If indemnification under this Article 8 or advancement of expenses are not paid or made by the Association, or on its behalf, within 90 days after a written claim for indemnification or a request for an advancement of expenses has been received by the Association, such person may, at any time thereafter, bring suit against the Association to recover the unpaid amount of the claim or the advancement of expenses. The right to indemnification and advancement of expenses provided hereunder shall be enforceable by such person in any court of competent jurisdiction. The burden of proving indemnification is not appropriate shall be on the Association. Expenses reasonably incurred by such person in connection with successfully establishing the right to indemnification or advancement of expenses, in whole or in part, shall also be indemnified by the

Association.

B. This Article 8 is intended to operate as a supplement and additional safeguard to, and not in place of or in any way limiting the immunity granted by Section 1715 of Article XVI.

Article 9. Officers.

- A. The business and affairs of the Association shall be conducted by its officers under the direction of the Board, which may exercise all such powers of the Association and do all such lawful acts and things as are directed or required to be exercised and done under Article XVII. The Association shall have a Chairman, a Vice Chairman, a Secretary and a Treasurer, and may have such other officers as the Board may authorize from time to time. It shall not be necessary for the officers to be directors. Each officer shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board and until his successor has been selected and qualified or until his earlier resignation or removal. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the Association. The resignation shall be effective upon receipt thereof by the Association or at such subsequent time as may be specified in the notice of resignation. The Association may secure the fidelity of any or all of the officers by bond or otherwise.
- B. Any officer or agent of the Association may be removed by the Board with or without cause. The removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of any person so removed. Election or appointment of an officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights. If the office of any officer becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be filled by the Board.
- C. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan or as delegated by the Board, the Chairman shall preside at all meetings of members and directors; shall be the chief executive officer of the Association; shall be responsible for the general and active management of the business of the Association; shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are put into effect, subject, however, to the right of the Board to delegate any specific powers to any other officer or officers of the Association and shall have the authority to execute bonds, mortgages and other contracts requiring a seal, under the seal of the Association, except where required or permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board to some other officer or agent of the Association.
- D. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan or as delegated by the Board, the Vice Chairman or, if more than one, the Vice Chairmen in the order, if any, established by the Board shall, in the absence or incapacity of the Chairman, have the authority to exercise all the powers and perform the duties of the Chairman. The Vice Chairmen, respectively, shall also have such other authority and perform such other duties as shall be determined by the Board or the Chairman.

- E. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan or as delegated by the Board, the Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board and of the members and keep accurate records thereof and shall perform the duties customarily performed by the secretary of a corporation and such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board or the Chairman.
- F. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan or as delegated by the Board, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the custody of the Association's funds and securities; shall be responsible for full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board or the Chairman. He shall give bond in such sum and with such surety as the Board may from time to time direct.

Article 10. Transition Provisions.

- A. This Article provides for the transition between the Association and the Pennsylvania Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (the "Prior Association") created by the Act of November 26, 1978 (P.L. 1188, No. 280) (the "1978 Act") which remains applicable to any member insurer thereof declared insolvent prior to December 18, 1992.
 - 1. All assets, properties, rights, powers, privileges, interests, claims, obligations, liabilities and responsibilities of the Prior Association shall be and hereby are transferred and assigned to the Association, and the Association shall assume from the Prior Association all such assets, properties, powers, privileges, interests and claims and shall perform and discharge all such obligations, liabilities and responsibilities. The Association shall be the successor in all respects and for all purposes to the Prior Association and the Association and the Prior Association are authorized to do such further acts and things as either deems necessary or advisable to carry out more effectively the transfer of assets and assumptions of liabilities provided herein and to evidence such succession.
 - 2. All actions taken by the Association in respect of any insurer declared insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction prior to December 18, 1992 shall be governed by the 1978 Act.

Article 11. Conformity to Statute.

Article XVII as written, and as may be hereafter amended, is incorporated as a part of this Plan.